

ADDL. MSS. GEO. / 15 (396)

The Draining Account

— of —

John Ridgale — from 29: Sept: 1798, to 4: May 1799 —
at which Time he left off for the Season.

		Rods of 2 Spit Ditching
Near the Carpenter's Yard — 3 Rods of 3 Spit Ditching } equal to ————— } 4 1/2		
2 Spit —————	243 1/2	248
Near the Charcoal House — 2 Spit —————	638	
3 Spit — 22 Rods equal to ————	33	671
Shrub's Hill Farm —————		1954
Between Reading Road and the Lodge Gardens —————		455
Between the Queen's Walk and Snow Hill —————		
2 Spit Ditches —————	2255	
3 Spit — 148 Rods equal to ————	222	2477
Near Kutter's Pen &c —————	2748	
3 Spit — 188 Rods equal to ————	2282	3030
Near Magpie Bushes by Keeper's Paddock &c — 2 Spit —————	4731	
3 Spit — 372 Rods equal to ————	558	5289
Plain Field —————		624
101 Rods of Open Ditching — reckoning 3 for 1 ————		303
20 Days Work for 6 Men, at 12 Rod a day each Man ————		1440
— Total Number of Rods ————		<u>16491</u>
Which at 4 1/2 ft Rod, amounts to —————		309: 4: 1 1/2
— To which add —		
John Ridgale's weekly Pay, for Superintendance of the Work, from 29: Sept: 1798, to 4 May 1799 — 31 Weeks at £1:1:0 — } 32: 11: 0		
Four Days Work of 2 Men at 2/6 a day each —————		1: 0: 0
— Deduct —		<u>£ 342: 15: 1 1/2</u>
Cash received at sundry Times of M. Frost —————	126: 0: 0	
		<u>£ 216: 15: 1 1/2</u>

M^r. Pearce paid this Balance of
£ 216: 15: 1 1/2 to Ridgale, and also gave
me a Draft for the 126 £. this 7: May 1799

(J. Smart)

Proctor's Drawing Book

from
29. Oct 1790, to 4. May 1794

£ 5 2

342 : 15 : 112

See the original of
this book in the
MS. A. 9. 2. 112

1799
 May 30¹⁷⁹⁹ pd Mr Coles for warrant for George miles 3.0
 took him at old Windsor 11 o'clock at night pd bear 3.6
 for men — Spong staid all night with him —

May 31 pd George Eton four men Breakfast — — 4.0
 Waiting Crown Windsor for justice till two o'clock
 for five men Dinner and Bear — — 7.6
 near four given to Constable with him 3.0-0
 pd Mr Cole Clark — — — — 8.6

4.6.6
 10.6

attended two Days at Windsor wth Spong and self
 journey to Maidenhead —
 hired Horse to Abington two Days New for Selous 2.0.0

Recd of Mr Smart — — — — 7.3.0

am to pay Constable out 10.6.0 ⁵ ¹⁷ 0

Swine on Flemish & Norfolk Farms
June 12 1798 - June 12 1799

[Faint handwritten text, likely bleed-through from the reverse side of the page. The text is illegible due to fading and bleed-through.]

Flemish Farm Swine Account

from June 12/98 to June 14/99.

<p>Stock valued June 12/98</p> <p>3 Boars ————— 11. 0. 6</p> <p>3 German Sows ————— 3. 3. 0</p> <p>10 Berkshire Sows ————— 37. 16. 0</p> <p>1 Chinese Sow ————— 2. 0. 0</p> <p>20 Pigs at 0/ ————— 0. 0. 0</p> <p>40 ——— 0/ ————— 12. 0. 0</p> <p style="text-align: right;"><u>£ 73. 19. 6</u></p> <p>Swineherd ————— 6. 0. 0</p> <p style="margin-left: 2em;">Consumption</p> <p>2 1/2 R. ————— 7. 0. 0</p> <p>6. 1 of Barley at 22/ — 6. 14. 9</p> <p>4. 3 Beans — 20/ — 6. 2. 6</p> <p>6. 0 Oats — 16 — 5. 16. 0</p> <p>Pollard and Bran — 52. 10. 0</p> <p>Charcoal ————— 4. 0. 0</p> <p>537 N^o of Potatoes at 8. — 17. 10. 0</p> <p style="text-align: right;"><u>92. 1. 3</u></p> <p style="text-align: right;"><u>£ 172. 0. 9</u></p>	<p style="text-align: center;">1798</p> <p>July — By 24 Pigs sent to the Norfolk Farm at 9/6 } 9. 19. 6</p> <p>Nov^r — By 35 D^r ————— at 0/ — 14. 0. 0</p> <p>Dec^r — By 23 D^r ————— 0/ — 9. 4. 0</p> <p style="text-align: center;">1799</p> <p>Feb^r — By 24 D^r ————— 9/ — 10. 16. 0</p> <p>March — By 20 D^r ————— 0/6 — 8. 10. 0</p> <p>May — By 30 D^r ————— 10/ — 15. 0. 0</p> <p style="margin-left: 2em;">By 30 Loads of Dung — 7 — 10. 10. 0</p> <p style="text-align: right;">June 14/99 — Stock valued at — 90. 17. 6</p> <p style="text-align: right;"><u>£ 168. 17. 0</u></p> <p>Lost by Swine at Flemish Farm ————— } 3. 3. 9</p> <p style="text-align: right;"><u>£ 172. 0. 9</u></p>
--	---

Stock

40 Pigs

20

30

1798

July — To

Feb^r — To

Nov^r — To

Dec^r — To

1799

Feb^r — To

March — To

May — To

Swine

2000 N^o

120 w^o

6 — w^o

482 5 N^o

11 — 5 —

13 — 2 —

— 4 —

Clover

Profit by
Norfolk

Swine on Flemish & Norfolk Farms
June 12 1798 - June 14 1799

Norfolk Farm Swine A/c

from 12th June 1798 to 14 June 99 -

Stock valued June 12/98

40 Pigs	at 36/-	72.0.0
20	24/-	24.0.0
30	15/-	22.10.0
		<u>£ 118.10.0</u>

By Pigs sold between
12 June 98. and 14 June 99 } 279. 5. 7 1/2

By 70 Loads of Dung } 24. 10. 0

1798	July	To 21 Pigs from the Flemish Farm at 9/6	9. 19. 6
	Nov.	To 35	14
	Dec.	To 23	9. 4. 0
1799	Febry	To 24	10. 16. 0
	March	To 20	8. 10. 0
	May	To 30	15. 0. 0
		Swineherd	34. 0. 0

June 14/99 - Stock valued at 113. 0. 0

£ 416. 15. 7 1/2

Consumption

2000 N. of Potatoes	at 8. 6. 13. 4	
120 Wheat	1. 0. 0	
6 Oye	at 10/-	5. 8. 0
482 1/2 N. Hay	22/-	53. 9. 9
11 5 Peas		16. 5. 6
13 2 Beans	20/-	18. 11. 0
4 Oats		0
Clover		8. 0. 0
		<u>169. 15. 7</u>
		<u>£ 380. 15. 1</u>

~~Profit by Swine at Norfolk Farm~~

Profit by Swine at
Norfolk Farm } 27. 0. 6 1/2

£ 416. 15. 7 1/2

416. 15. 7 1/2

Memorandum
Showing that the Dogs
are left profitable, or
the Slaves them on the
Worship's Account

16. Oct. 1799,

Course of Cropping on the Norfolk Farm,
as finally settled in August last

for the Year 1800,

Wheat Shift,

	A	R	P
Hurst Piece	32	0	0
Smith's Lawn	44	0	0
Meadow Mans Hill	20	0	0
Horse Shoe Piece	13	0	0
Home Piece	21	2	0

130: 2: 0

Turnip Shift,

	A	R	P
Ha! Ha! Piece	24	0	0
Gravel Pit Piece	39	0	0
Upper Mannors	10	0	0
New Piece	19	0	0
Leasow Mans Hill	16	0	0
Little Hare Warren	23	0	0

131: 0: 0

Oat Shift

	A	R	P
Chapel Wood Piece	19	0	0
Break Heart Piece	16	0	0
Great Hare Warren	36	0	0
Hither Mans Hill	18	0	0
Clump Piece	39	0	0

128: 0: 0

Clover Shift

	A	R	P
Mounts' Corner	22	2	0
Wilderness Piece	6	2	0
Craig's Hill	50	0	0
Rose's Bottom	30	0	0
Lower Mannors	21	0	0

130: 0: 0

Course of Prophecy on
the
Norfolk Burn,
settled in August 1793

Account of Stock found in Windsor Great
Park, on driving it 4. Dec: 1799.

	Neat Cattle	Horses
Mr. Frost	3	1
Lord Cathcart		1
General Harcourt	1	
His Majesty's Park fattening Stamorgans	11	
Park working D.	33	
Carmarthens	40	
Flemish Farm Hereford	8	
Worfolk Farm Downs	3	
Shrub Hill Stamorgans	3	
Clarke	8	2
Farnham	11	2
Rutter	11	2
Spong	11	2
Allport	5	
Syred	4	
Starling	1	
Wardlett	1	
Sandby [Thos. Sandby's widow O.M.]	1	1
A. M. Roberts	1	
Not owned	12	1
	168	12

perceive that this will be as many as
can be kept properly out of the well
His Majesty will have the Goodness to ~~consider~~
~~in this case~~ consider that Proposition against my
Having next the Honour of attending him that all
the ~~first~~ measures may be ^{immediately} taken ~~for~~ either for
persevering in the original Plan - or for adopting
this proposed alteration as His Majesty may think
best

List of Persons
 employed in
 Windsor Great Park & Farms
 to correspond with the End of
 1. January 1800
 The Return for November 1799

(Copy sent in to His Majesty
 20th Dec: 1799)

List of Persons,
 employed in
 Great Park and Farms
 1. January 1800
 The End of the Return for Nov: 1799

- Head Man
 Thomas Dalton
 James Gough
 William Greener
 William Smith
 John Walker
 John Tarrant
 Wheelwrights
 Fra^c: Sterling
 George Pike
 John Tindall Sen:?
 George Hinde
 Robert Byrne
 Tho: Gilmore
 W^m: Thackeray
 Mary Jackson
 John Tindall Jun:?
 Gardeners
 John Kidgale
 Richard Pigot
 William Lewis
 W^m: Woolward
 Samuel Reed
 J^o: Wilkinson
 Drainers

- Park continued.
 Edward Hubbard
 John Nichol
 J^o: Math: W. Daphne
 James Cotta
 John Tyles
 Tho: Taylor Sen:?
 Samuel Norman
 Daniel Chace
 N: Carpenter
 Tho: Burratt
 James Butler
 M: Webb
 Thomas Tyles
 A: Hudson
 John Tenney
 Fra^c: Goodchild
 John Moper
 W: Thackeray
 Aitau Watts
 Carters
 Labourers

— List of Persons, —
 employed in
 Windsor Great Park and Farms —
 1st January 1800 —
 to correspond with the End of the Return for Nov^r 1799

The Park
~~Park and Farms~~

Park continued.

William Coster — Head Man

Thomas Dalton }
 James Gough } Carpenters
 William Greener }
 William Smith }

John Walker }
 John Tarrant } Wheelwrights

Fra^s. Sterling }
 George Pike }
 John Tindall Sen^r. }
 George Flinde }
 Robert Byrne } Gardeners
 Tho^s. Gilmore }
 W^m. Thackeray }
 Mary Jackson }
 John Tindall Jun^r. }

John Kidgale }
 Richard Pigot }
 William Lewis } Drainers
 W^m. Woolward }
 Samuel Reed }
 J^o. Wilkinson }

Edward Hubbard }
 John Nichols }
 J^o. Watts W. Daphne } Carters

James Coster }
 John Tyles }

Tho^s. Taylor Sen^r. }
 Samuel Norman }
 Daniel Chace }
 N. Carpenter }
 Tho^s. Burratt }

James Butler }
 W. Webb } Labourers
 Thomas Tyles }
 N. Hudson }
 John Tenney }
 Fra^s. Goodchild }
 John Hooper }
 W. Thackeray }
 Richard Watts }

Norfolk Farm

Spruce Hill Farm

John Milke — Bailiff
 W^m Inwood } Shepherds
 Th. Gracemark }
 Robert Grimes }
~~William Tiddis~~ }
 William Denton }
 Richard Tindall }
 Daniel Stephens } Carters
 Thomas Saw }
 James Cades }
 James Syras }

W^d Stephens }
 John Sudd Jnr. }
 James Sudd } Boys
 John Hicks Jnr. }
 Fra^s Cades }
 Chas. Butler }

John Cades }
 Uriah Burgess }
 Jos. Platt }
 John Booth }
 N^o Beauchamp } Labourers
 John Judd }
 John Syras }
 Thomas Taylor Jnr. }
 Jos. Wadden }
 R^d Floyd }

Anth^y. Haddock — Head Man
~~W^m Daphne~~ }
 Henry Rolfe } Shepherds
 John Cheeseman }
 Samuel Tindall } Carters &
 Daniel Clifton } Boys
 John Inwood — Labourer

~~_____~~
Flemish Farm

Thomas Tibbs — Foreman
~~_____~~ }
 James Deppam }
 George Webling } Carters
 Ed. Child }

R^o Johnson }
 Jeremiah Ewell } Boys
 Thomas Darling }
 Thomas Perry }

Thos. Bradley }
 Moses Bulkley }
 John Johnson }
 R^o Dewley } Labourers
 George Scott }
 John Styles }
 William Lane }
~~_____~~ }
 W^m Linn }

Sold this 10 day of May 1800 for M^r Smart 40 Sheep

No	S	S	Co	Selling Help. Toll. Pens & Hurdles Tethers, Grass &c Dre ^{ss}	S	S	Co
40	Wells	32	64				
<p>W^m Respe^{ct}fully in form M^r Smart that having a spare opportunity of disposing of the whole together thought it much better than to vide no more where so very bad D^r Pull: for you to M^r 63 Went changed Lth Ath</p>							

Direct for me at Mess^{rs} Sharpe & Son,
N^o 50, West Smithfield, London.

Fran^{co} Bazlinton.

10:1 March 1800.

Bill of lads of 40 Shubs
Hill fasting Shup-Ed at
Smithfield

© Mr Smith

Account of Draining
 done by John Ridgale Esq^r in Windsor St^h Park
 between 11th October 1799, and 10th May 1800.
 at which Time he left off for the Season -

Park -	Rods	
Near Sandby's	254	
Between Syrods & Farnham's	768	
Near Swan Pond	1372	
Russell's Field	1443	
Near Sandpit Gate & Isle of Wight	5336	
100 Rods of Open Ditching, at 3 to 1 equal to	} 540	
11 Days Work of 5 Men, at 12 Rods per Day for each Man	} 660	
	10373	at 4 ¹ / ₂ - 194. 9. 10 ¹ / ₂
John Ridgale for Superintendance of the Work, from 11 th Oct. 1799, to 10 th May 1800, 30 Weeks at 1. 1. 0	} 31. 10. 0	£ 225. 19. 10 ¹ / ₂
Norfolk Farm -		
Smith's Lawn Piece	1506	at 4 ¹ / ₂ - 29. 14. 9
Flemish Farm.		
Different Pieces	2096	at 4 ¹ / ₂ - 39. 6. 0
		£ 295. 0. 7 ¹ / ₂

Drawing Sheet:
of
John Mudge's 8000
from A. Oct. 1799, to 10
May 1800.
4 1 2
295 ~ 0 ~ 7 1/2

June 3 1800

Memorandums about Swine

1800-

Feb 22. - 1 large Sow, 2 small Sows, & a Boar, (bought by Mr. Harvey for the Norfolk Farm) arrived -
 Same Evening, the lighter coloured small Sows pigged -

March 12 - The great Sow (from Mr. Harvey) farrowed 4 living

19 - The other Sow. (from Mr. Harvey) farrowed - 6

Beginning of Saw (bought of Frimley) farrowed 6 - May 5 did -
 April -

May 3. - Tyfas's Sow - pigged - 2 only living

June 3. - A small Sandy Sow (from the Stores) pigged - 6

No 17

Direct for us at the ~~Greyhound Inn~~, West Smithfield, London.

55 Shillings ~~paid~~ fold for Mr. *Peinart* the 13th Day of *June* 1791

	l.	s.	d.		l.	s.	d.
				Selling <i>g driving</i>	2	15	
				Expences and Toll			
				Help			
5	Jolly	35	8	Drover			
39	Brown	12	23	Letters, &c.			
11	Sturges	9	4	Sending Money			
<u>55</u>				To Balance		34	7
						<u>37</u>	<u>2</u>

THOMAS EBSWORTH & SON.

Sir

I should have never shud a turn the small ones in to any kind of money at all, as there was so many little and poor. I shud advise you to keep them a little while longer then perhaps them will grow larger, I have no opinion of the crop with the south down as there are of no use and likewise with the Spanish, If you shud send any for next weeks market. Please to send one of your men to Windsor on Tuesday next by 8 O'clock in the morning and then my man will be there

Yours Humble Servt
John Ebsworth

19 June 1802

Will of the
50



Mr T. Smart
Great Court
Windsor
Bucks

Cattle found in the Park, 12. Sept. 1800,

		Neat Cattle	Horses
Park Green	Glammorgan Working	32	
	Stores	10	
Norfolk Farm and Shrub Hill Farm	Working Fatting	85	
	Stores	10	24
Hemish Farm	Working	4	
	Stores	4	
	Working	29	
	Stores	22	
Little Park	Working	4	
	Fatting	37	
	Stores	35	
General Harcourt	Glammorgan	10	
	Herefords	6	
Sord Cathcart		10	1
W. Frost		1	
Sterling		2	2
Allport		2	
Furnham		10	
Rutter		12	1
Clarke		11	
Spong		10	1
Wallis		9	2
Syred		3	2
Noble		2	
Partlett		1	
Kidd		1	2

1800
 Copy of a Journal sent to
 His Majesty
 at Weymouth - every Sunday

July 30 - Sep. 13 1800

0) 796 76
 99 14

0) 1022 40
 127 16 30
 0 60
 12 7

Began cutting

per sent to His Majesty at
 with every Sunday

relative to the Norfolk & Thrus Hill Farm

Wednesday 30. July 1800 -

27 by
 the Oats on Clump Piece

Thursday 31. -

Finished cutting the Oats on Clump Piece about Noon

Began reaping Rye on ~~the~~ Thrus Hill Piece

Inwood selected 100 Wiltshire Ewes from his flock
 which for the purpose of setting them from the Folds for
 about a Week, when the 2 Wiltshire Rams are to be
 put to them - The Remainder of the Ewes to have
 South Down Rams, but not so early -

Friday 1. Aug.

Settled with Anthony Haddock to begin cutting
 Rye and Oats at Thrus Hill on Monday next

Saturday 2 -

The Oats from Clump Piece were carted, and ridded at
 the Movable Barn

M

1800
 Copy of a Journal sent to
 His Majesty
 at Weymouth

July 30 — Sep. 13 1800

of Paper sent to His Majesty at
 Weymouth — every Sunday —

~~memorandums relative to the Norfolk & Thrus Hill Farm~~

Wednesday 30. July 1800 —

Harvest on the N.F. by
 Began cutting the Oats on Clump Piece

Thursday 31. —

Finished cutting the Oats on Clump Piece about Noon

Began reaping Rye on ~~the~~ Thrus Lake Piece

Inwood selected 100 Wiltshire Ewes from his Flock
 which for the Purpose of setting them from the 20th Jan
 about a Week, when the 2 Wiltshire Rams are to be
 put to them — The Remainder of the Ewes to have
 South Down Rams, but not so early —

Friday 1. Aug.

Settled with Anthony Haddock to begin cutting
 Rye and Oats at Thrus Hill on Monday next

Saturday 2. —

The Oats from Clump Piece were carted, and rilled at
 the Movable Barn —

M

2

At this Time, there are upwards of 60 Acres sown with Turnip and Cole Seed on the Norfolk Farm - and 12 Acres on the Shrub Hill Farm - but ~~for~~ the Drought of the Season, ^{continues,} there is no prospect of the Plants doing well, except upon the 4 Acres, Part of the Ha! Ha! Piece - which were sown on the 13th of June - and are very capital

Norfolk and Shrub Hill Farms.

Monday 4th 1000

Began cutting Rye and Oats on the Shrub Hill Farm

Tuesday 5th

Began ~~cutting~~ ^{reaping} Rye on the Horse Shoe Piece, and Peas on the Wilderump Piece

Wednesday 6th

Began cutting Rye on Meadow Stans Hill, and Rye and Oats on Smith's Lawn

Thursday 7th

Began reaping Wheat on Hunt Piece and mowing Oats on Break Hunt Hill

Mr. Pearce caused some of the Cabbage Plants to be planted out, and by keeping them well watered, it is hoped they will be found of great Service in the Winter, as the Turnip Crop seems likely to fail

Fri. Aug. 8 - Tues. Aug. 19

Friday 9

(3)

Cabbage planting was continued, and about 2 Acres completed

Saturday 9.

The 2 within Acres were put to the 800 Withers Ewes which were selected from the best of Inwood's Flock on the 31st July

M. Haddock began to cart the Oats at Shrub's Hill

Nonfoll and Shrub's Hill Farms,

Monday 11 August 1800.

As great Confusion has generally occurred during Winter, from the Method of housing different Sorts of Grain in the same Bay, it was settled that Shrub's Hill Barn should ^{this Year} be filled with Oye, and the three Bays of the Great Barn strictly with Wheat, Oats, and Barley - The little Barn to be reserved for the Potatoes

Began cutting Wheat in Horse Shoe Piece, and Oats in Great Horse Wares

The Oats from Brute Great Hill were carted

Tuesday 12.

M. Haddock began carting Oye on the Shrub's Hill Farm

The Oats from Smith's Lanes, and part of the Wheat from Horse Shoe Piece, were also carted

Wednesday 13.

Began cutting Wheat on Smith's Lanes

The Oye from Meadows Shrub's Hill, and part of that on Smith's Lanes, were carted

The Carrying of Oats was completed at Shrub Hill

The Peas were all carted, and also the Remainder of the
Wheat from Hurst Piece — The Oats on Nursery Piece were mown

Friday 15

Carted the Oats from Great Horse Warren And
the Barley on Clump Piece was mown

Saturday 16

The Wheat from Horse Share Piece was carried &
the Barley on Great Horse Warren was mown

Norfolk and Shrub Hill Farms

Monday 18. August 1800.

Henry came to the Norfolk Turnpike House, left the Oats — They
refused to ^{do Harvest Work} ~~work~~ ~~the~~ ~~same~~ ~~price~~ as other People, &
were therefore ~~not~~ paid off — Their going did not occasion the
least Inconvenience, Major Desbrow having been so good
last Week to suffer a Party of the Staffordshire Militia to
assist in cutting the Corn

The Oats on New Piece were mown, and those on Nursery Piece
carried — The Carting of Hay on the Norfolk Farm was completed
and begun at Shrub Hill

Tuesday 19

The Wheat from Smith's Leas was carried, & that on Meadon
Shrub Hill, the only Piece now standing, begun to be cut

Aug. 20 - Sep. 13

5

Monday 20.

The barley from Camp Peir, and most of that on Great Har-
 Warner, was carted
 began cutting the last Peir of oats, namely, the Home Peir -
 & Mr. Haddock carted some wheat at Shrub Hill

Tuesday 21.

The barley or little running Peir was mowed - & the Oats
 from New Peir were ~~carried~~
 finished by cart at Shrub Hill

Friday 22.

Finished wheat cart at Shrub Hill, which completed ^{on that farm}
 harvest there - but, although there was scarcely any rain,
 the showers fell so frequent and heavy on the 22nd Jan as to prevent the
 carting of any more

Saturday 23.

The rain still continued - Had the weather been favourable
 yesterday and this day, harvest would have been finished

North and Shrub Hill Farms

Monday. 25 August 1800.

Began threshing day on the North Farm - to get some in hand
 for seed, as well as to set the Mill at work for the Labourer as soon
 as possible

Tuesday 26 -

In the Afternoon, finished the banting of wheat - and carried also
 some Oats from the Home Peir - but the rain again put ^{a stop} to
 it.

27

Wednesday 27.

The sowing of Turnips and Colerid was completed, except upon the stubbles - No com carted - but

Thursday 28.

Rain still continuing, several labourers were employed in setting mowing Team and Habbit for litter

Friday 29.

Finished oat Cart - but a very heavy shower prevented the carrying of any barley -

Saturday 30.

Carted the Barley from ^{best} Hare Warren. - The Barley, or Little Nursery Piece (4 Acres) is the only Corn now in the Field, & ~~but~~ the crop being very heavy, could not be got into proper Order -

During the last three Days, about sixteen Acres of Stubble Turnips were sown on the Harst Piece -

Norfolk and Shrub Hill Farms.

Monday 1. Sept. 1800.

The Barley from the Little Nursery Piece was carted - which completed the Harvest -

Tuesday 2.

Four other Acres of Stubble Turnips were sown on the Harst Piece -

Aug. 20 - Sept. 13

Monday 3rd

The sowing of Turnips and Potatoes was concluded at Shrub's Hill

Tuesday 4th

M. H. began ploughing up the Wheat stubble, for Potatoes & Rye for Spin, and for the Sheep - and about 3 Acres of Harrowed Soil were covered with Rye for the same purpose

Friday 5th

Raining the whole Day; so that nothing was done but trifling jobs about the yards

Saturday 6th

The Teams were employed, some in forming Dung Mounds in the Field on Lower Mannin's Piece for Wheat, whilst others were ploughing and preparing the ground

Northwell and Shrub's Hill Farm

Monday 8th Sept. 1800.

Having received Information from Mr. Pearce, that a Mr. Murray would be able this Day to purchase the Refuse Sheep, the whole of them were brought up from Dickson's Yard, and divided into proper lots for his Inspection - but he did not come

Purchased ~~the~~ 2 lots of Dung made by the Horses of the Artillery attached to the Infantry Camp

8.

Shrobs Hill Farm
 - Account
 from Michas 1799 to
 Michas 1800 -

Hill Farm Acct.
 - from -
 1799, to Michas 1800

To the Value of the	£. s. d.	By Agreement of	£. s. d.
Stock and Crops at	79A. 11. 6	Shrop at Hemish Farm	3. 15. 0
Michas 1799		in Oct. and Nov. 1799	
To J. Banister for 10 fatts	17. 0. 0	By Harvest Supper in	0. 10. 6
Withins		1799	
To 110 D. ^o sold at Smithfield	63. 0. 0	By R. ^o foodman for	2. 87. 0
To John Milk for 3 D. ^o	2. 10. 6	making and mending	
To D. ^o for 1 D. ^o	1. 9. 0	Handls	
To D. ^o for 2 D. ^o	1. 17. 6	By Hay bought at an	7. 15. 0
To 6 D. ^o sold to Labourer	3. 1A. 7 1/2	Auction at Blacknuff	
To 7A D. ^o sold to J. Ismay	59. 11. 0	By Ch. ^o Davis for 1/2 Load	2. 15. 0
at 16/		of Hay	
To 17 D. ^o sold to Banister	22. 19. 0	By 1 Glamorgan See-	12. 15. 0
at 27/		caption of	
To Wool from 26A Sheep	39. 12. 0	By Harvest Supper	0. 10. 6
computed at 2 ^d . each		in 1800	
and 1/6 p ^o lb		By A Planner for	1. 1. 0
To John Whuler for Straw	8. 10. 6	valuing Crops	
To D. ^o for 11 2/7 D. ^o of Oats	23. 6. 10 1/2	By Dung purchased	3A. 6. 6
To D. ^o for 13 1/2 D. ^o of Oats	27. 0. 0	By Agreement of	5. 3. 0
To James Webb for 15 1/2 D. ^o	32. 11. 0	Spill in the Park	
To M. Holgate for 10 D. ^o	24. 0. 0	By D. ^o of Sheep in	13. 0. 0
To Isaac Lane for 13 1/2 D. ^o	35. 8. 9	the Park	
To Ch. ^o Davis for 10 1/2 D. ^o	27. 0. 9	By Keep of Fattening Sheep	1A. 1A. 0
To D. ^o for 7. 7 of D. ^o	15. 15. 0	on Turnips at Norfolk	
To 1/2 Load of Straw to	3. 3. 0	Farm last Winter	
the Brick Kiln		By Shearing of Sheep	4. 1. 0
To the Hon. ^{ble} Gen. Harcourt	4. 10. 0	By Thatching	2. 10. 2 1/2
for 12 D. ^o of Oye at 7/6		By a Caving Riddler	0. 2. 10
		from Thompsons	
		By 13 D. ^o of Seed Oats	35. 15. 0
		from Holgate - d. (v)	
Can. over	113. 0. 6	Carried over	1A. 11. 6 1/2

Spruce Hill Farm Acct.

— from —

Michas 1799, to Michas 1800

ADDL. MSS. G. 7

To the Value of the	£. s. d.	By Agreement of	£. s. d.
Stock and Crops at	794.11.6	Sheep at Hemish Farm	3.15.0
Michas 1799		in Oct. and Nov. 1799	
To J. Banister for 10 fatts	17.0.0	By Harvest Tupper in	0.10.6
Wethers		1799	
To 110 D ^o sold at Smithfield	63.0.0	By R. Goodman for	2.87.0
To John Milk for 3 D ^o	2.10.6	making and mending	
To D ^o for 1 D ^o	1.9.0	• Hurdles	
To D ^o for 2 D ^o	1.17.6	By Hay bought at an	7.15.0
To 6 D ^o sold to labourer	3.14.7 ¹ / ₂	auktion at Blackheath	
To 74 D ^o sold to J. Asmay	59.4.0	By Ch. Davis for 1/2 Load	2.15.0
at 16/		of Hay	
To 17 D ^o sold to Banister	22.19.0	By 1 Glamorgan See-	12.15.0
at 27/		cession of	
To Wool from 264 Sheep	39.12.0	By Harvest Tupper	0.10.6
computed at 2 ^d . each		in 1800	
and 1/6 ff th		By R. Plummer for	1.1.0
To John Wheeler for Straw	8.10.6	valuing Crops	
To D ^o for 11 2/7 D ^o of Oats	23.6.10 ¹ / ₂	By Dung purchased	34.6.6
To D ^o for 13 1/2 D ^o of Oats	27.0.0	By Agreement of	5.3.0
To James Webb for 15 1/2 D ^o	32.11.0	Feed in the Park	
To M. Wolgate for 10 D ^o	24.0.0	By D ^o of Sheep in	13.0.0
To Isaac Lane for 13 1/2 D ^o	35.8.9	the Park	
To Ch. Davis for 10 1/2 D ^o	27.0.9	By Heap of Fattening Sheep	14.14.0
To D ^o for 7 1/7 of D ^o	15.15.0	on Turnips at Norfolk	
To 1/2 Load of Straw to	3.3.0	Farm last Winter	
the Brick Kiln		By Shearing of Sheep	4.1.0
To the Hon ^{ble} Genl. Harewood	4.10.0	By Thatching	2.10.2 ¹ / ₂
for 12 D ^o of Oye at 7/6		By a Caving Kidder	0.2.10
		from Thompsons	
		By 13 D ^o of Seed Oats	35.15.0
		from Wolgate - d ^o	
Car. over	113.0.6	Carried over	141.11.6 ¹ / ₂

Bro. over 113.0.6 1000 Bro. over 111.11.6

To Cash received for Flour
 sold to the Struck's Hill } 30.5.0
 Labourers in the Year

This 30.5.0 is equal to
 173 B^s of Rye at 3/6
 26 B^s ———— in 1000 —
 12 B^s ———— sold to J. Harcourt

271 B^s of Rye
 The whole given at Struck's
 Hill last year was 213 B^s
 so that the Norfolk Farm
 must pay the Difference,
 namely 2 B^s at 7/ ———— 0.14.0

£ 444.0.2

By Clover, Trefoil, and
 Rye-grass Seed } 10.16.7

By 1 1/2 Load of Hay bot.
 of Whelan at 5.15.0 — } 8.12.6

By Harvest Beer ———— 2.14.9

By 9 B^s of Seed
 Tans at 15/6 ———— } 6.19.6

By Mole catching ———— 1.1.0

By Labour ———— 177.11.6

By Tradesmen's Bills ———— 24.0.0

By Keep of 5 fattening Oxen
 at Norfolk Farm & in the Park } 17.10.0
 from 16. Nov. 1799, to 26. Oct. 1800

By 1 1/2 Loads of Hay from
 the Norfolk Farm — 3.2.0 — } 13.19.0

By Cole Seed ———— 0.6.0

By 12 Sheep from the
 Norfolk Farm at 12/6 } 25.4.0

£ 430.6.5

By Value of Stock
 and crop at
 Midst 1800 ———— } 811.0.0

By Value of the
 Stock and crop at
 Midst 1799 ———— } 794.14.6

£ 1225.0.11

By Balance of
 Favor of the Farm } 29.19.3

£ 1255.0.2

£ 1255.0.2

ADDL. MSS. GEO/15

Treasury Payments

from Michas 1799 to Michas 1800
to be received by M. Kent from Gen. Harcourt

For the Term 2^d: 1799-

Park Wages	77 10 0	
Norfolk Farm 8 ^d		107 14 4
Flemish Farm 8 ^d		197 5 1
Park Labour	164 14 0	
Norfolk & Shrub Hill 8 ^d	169 0 3	
Flemish Farm 8 ^d	67 4 4 1/2	400 10 7 1/2
Tradersmen's Bills		112 0 3
		<u>700 13 2 1/2</u>

14 9 2
 9 15 0
 30 19 2
 5 11 0
 51 5 3
112 8 3

For the Lady day 2^d: 1800-

Park Wages	79 3 0	
Norfolk Farm 8 ^d	50 16 9	
Flemish Farm 8 ^d	25 19 0	163 10 9
Park Labour	156 18 1/2	
Norfolk & Shrub Hill 8 ^d	166 16 3/4	
Flemish Farm 8 ^d	65 0 3	389 2 8 1/4
Tradersmen's Bills		147 9 10
		<u>700 11 3 1/4</u>

109 7 8
 36 11 5
 1 10 9
147 9 10

For the Midsummer Quarter 1800

Park Wages	79 3 0	
Norfolk Farm 8 ^d	57 10 6	
Flemish Farm 8 ^d	23 2 6	153 16 0
Park Labour	176 2 11	
Norfolk and Shrub Hill 8 ^d	196 10 9 1/2	
Flemish Farm 8 ^d	84 17 2 3/4	457 18 1 1/4
Tradersmen's Bills		89 8 5
		<u>701 3 4 1/4</u>

67 10 6
 8 2 11
 13 15 0
89 8 5

For the Michaelmas Lev. 1800.

	£ . s . d.	
Park Wages	72: 3: 0	
Norfolk Farm d ^o	40: 13: 6	
Flemish Farm d ^o	27: 16: 0	
	<hr/>	155: 12: 6
Park Labour	106: 0: 10	
Norfolk & Shrub Hill d ^o	194: 6: 10	
Flemish Farm d ^o	50: 9: 5 1/2	
	<hr/>	430: 17: 1 1/2
45: 7: 5 1/2 19: 10: 1 1/2 12: 9: 2 27: 15: 4 } Traders Bills	<hr/>	105: 2: 0 1/2
	<hr/>	£ 699: 11: 0

For the Christmas Lev. 1800

	£ . s . d.	
Park Wages	79: 3: 0	
Norfolk Farm d ^o	49: 2: 6	
Flemish Farm d ^o	_____	

14th 15th - ~~14~~ October 1800

Revised the value of the ^{Stock and} ~~Crop~~ ^{Stocks different} on the ~~Stafford~~ ^{Stafford} Farms ^{and} and settled the same as follows -

Stafford Farm -

Implements of Husbandry as before	---	300.00	
Cattle - 19 - Fatting Oxen at 20 18 18	---	382.10.0	
73 working Oxen - at 13.10.0	---	985.10.0	
14 Horses - at 3.3.0	---	44.2.0	
107 Wiltshire Ewes - at 2.16.0	---	214.0.0	
		192.12.0	
314 South Down & Wilt - at 1.8.0	---	251.2.0	
		439.12.0	
303 Lambs - at 0.15.0	---	227.5.0	
22 Store Sheep of different sorts - at 10 th	---	11.0.0	
2 Boars - at 3.3.0	---	6.6.0	
6 Sows - at 2.12.6	---	15.15.0	
30 Pigs - at 3.0.0	---	90.0.0	
8 Pigs - at 35 th	---	14.0.0	
9 Pigs - at 15 th	---	6.15.0	
2 Pigs - at 4 th	---	4.8.0	
2 Turkeys at 7/6 - 6 Green - 80 Hens -	---	11.11.0	
			2425.16.0
Corn 796 Bushels of Wheat at 9 th	---	358.4.0	
436 Bushels of Barley at 4/3	---	92.13.0	
596 Bushels of Rye - at 6 th	---	178.16.0	
2800 Bushels of Oats - at 4 th	---	560.0.0	
120 Bushels of Peas - at 6 th	---	36.0.0	
			1225.18.0
Potatoes - 10 Aers at 140 Bushels of 2/6 a Bushel	---	175.0.0	
Cabbage - 4 Aers at 3.0.0	---	12.0.0	
Turneps - 80 Aers at 1.0.0	---	80.0.0	
Clewards - 40 Aers at old Sows - 1.0.0	---	40.0.0	
Winter 24 Aers - new Sows - 12 th	---	14.8.0	
Flukes - Bought and Planted - 370	---	10.10.0	
			340.6.0
			321.8.0
			4272.4.0
			4291.15.0

~~4242 17 0~~
4241-15 0

Hay	Two Bales of Clover ^{Seed} 80	at 4 £	320 0 0	
	Five Bales of Madder 200	at 3 £	600 0 0	
	One Refuse Bale 20	at 30 sh	30 0 0	
			<u>950 0 0</u>	

Total of Stock and Crop on the Norfolk Farm 5241 15 0
Exceeds last year's value by 740 9 6

- Shrubs Hill -

	Implements of Husbandry			46 70 0 0
Cattle	5 Tottling Oxen	at 15 £ 22	160 0 0	
	12 Working Oxen	at 14 £	168 0 0	
	4 Suckling Oxen	at 13 £	52 0 0	
	4 Tottling Sheep	at 1 2 0	4 8 0	
	202 Store Wethers	at 16 sh	141 8 0	
			<u>475 16 0</u>	

Corn	120 Bushels of Wheat	at 9 sh	54 0 0	
	14 1/2 Bushels of Oats	at 6 sh	43 4 0	
	600 Bushels of Oats	at 4/6	135 0 0	
			<u>232 4 0</u>	

Hay	3 1/2 Loads of Hay	at 3 £	10 10 0	
Turneps	30 Acres	at 15 sh	22 10 0	
			<u>33 0 0</u>	

Total value of Stock & Crop on Shrubs Hill Farm 811 0 0
Exceeds last year's value by 16 5 6

Implements
Cattle
Corn
Potatoes
Cabbages
Turnips
Hay

Flemish Farm,

L. S. D.

Implements of Husbandry			170. 0. 0
Cattle	2 fattening Oxen	at 50. 0. 0	100. 0. 0
	13 D ^o	at 25. 0. 0	325. 0. 0
	15 D ^o	at 20. 0. 0	300. 0. 0
	10 D ^o	at 12. 0. 0	120. 0. 0
	4 D ^o	at 10. 0. 0	40. 0. 0
	29 Working Oxen	at 18. 0. 0	522. 0. 0
	10 Store Oxen	at 16. 0. 0	160. 0. 0
	5 D ^o	at 12. 0. 0	60. 0. 0
	19 D ^o	at 10. 5. 0	194. 15. 0
	74 Sheep	at 20/-	1480. 0. 0
	200 D ^o	at 26/-	5200. 0. 0
	46 D ^o	at 26/-	1196. 0. 0
	10 D ^o	at 25/-	250. 0. 0
	170 D ^o	at 57/-	9690. 0. 0
	1 Boar		2. 0. 0
	11 Sows	at 3. 0. 0	33. 0. 0
	19 Store Pigs	at 1. 10. 0	20. 10. 0
	16 D ^o	at 0. 11. 0	176. 0. 0
			2596. 5. 0
Corn	1022 B ^{ls} of Wheat	at 9/-	9198. 0. 0
	1376 B ^{ls} of Oats	at 4/0	5504. 0. 0
	606 B ^{ls} of Beans	at 5/-	3030. 0. 0
			886. 12. 0
Potatoes	6 Acres at 140 B ^{ls} and 2/6 bushel		105. 0. 0
Cabbage	3	at 2. 10. 0	7. 10. 0
Turnips	4	at 2. 0. 0	8. 0. 0
			120. 10. 0
Hay	7 Ricks of Meadows	190 loads at 3	570. 0. 0
	1	at 50/-	50. 0. 0
	1	at 60/-	60. 0. 0
			680. 0. 0

Value last Year's Valuation £. 1420. 19. 6

4130. 12

1242 17. 0
1241 15. 0

950 0. 0
241 15. 0

70. 0. 0

175. 16. 0

232. 4. 0

33. 0. 0

701. 0. 0

Oct. 12 & 15 1800

The Park.

			£ 5
Implements of Husbandry	_____		316. 0. 0
Cattle	11 Working Oxen	at 15 £	165. 0. 0
	21 Do	at 14 £	294. 0. 0
	10 Store Oxen	at 13 =	130. 0. 0
			509. 0. 0
Hay	40 Loads for Oxen	at 3 £	120. 0. 0
	76 1/2 Do stacked for Deer	at 3 £	229. 10. 0
			349. 10. 0

Liquid last Year £ 22. 10. 0

£ 1254. 10. 0

1254	10	0
1169	0	0
85	10	0

Dec. 1800

Return of Stock
 Flemish Farm for Dec
 1800
 Fattening Oxen Decreased
 by 10 by Sale of 15 and
 Purchase of 5
 Working Oxen the same
 as at the end of last month
 Store Oxen the same as at
 the end of last month
 Store Sheep Decreased
 4 by death
 Store Pigs Decreased
 12 by Sale of 10 and death
 of 2
 J. Frost

Mr. Frost Bailiff.
 Lived at "Royal Lodge"
 OM.

*Comparative Valuation,
Of the Crops of Corn and Hay, on Windsor
Great Park and Farms, in the Years 1799 &
1800.*

<i>Norfolk Farm.</i>		<i>Shrub's Hill.</i>	
1800	Corn — 1183.12.0	1800	Corn — 206.16.0
	Hay — 962.0.0		Hay — 7.0.0
	<u>£ 2145.12.0</u>		<u>£ 213.16.0</u>
	Deduct Last Year's Valuation — 1593.5.0		Deduct Last Year's Valuation — 170.7.0
	<u>Increase this Year — 552.7.0</u>		<u>Increase this Year — 43.8.0</u>

Park £ 2
 1800 Hay 349.10.0
 1800 Com 856.2.0
 Hay 666.0.0
 £ 1622.2.0
 Deduct
 Last Year's Value 1179.2.0
 Increase £ 10.10.0
 This Year }
 Deduct
 Last Year's Value 1179.2.0
 Increase £ 343.0.0
 This Year }

Remark.

The Stock, the Potatoes, Turneps, Cabbages & Clovers
 were, with me, in value till the 1st of January, being the
 first time for many years - when Mr. Kitchin's
 value was 1179.2.0 - the present value is 1622.2.0
 and the increase is 443.0.0.

Kingston Dec^r 4th 1800

Mr. Kent

of John Skypain

89 Sacks of Malt Dust at 4/-	17.. 16.. 0
Paid men for filling 89 Sacks	.. 7.. 5
	<hr/>
	18 .. 3 .. 5

Have accommodated your servant with 30 Sacks
 will esteem it favour if you will order them to be sent
 back by the Windsor Barge as soon as convenient.

Barwells Season
Admeasurement of -

12th Jan^y - 1801